
APPROVED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Selectmen 

24 August 2011 

Minutes 

 

6:04 pm - Chairman Don Guarino called the meeting to order.  Present were Chairman 
Guarino, Selectman Ralph Lavin, Town Administrator Tim Warren and Clerk Lois 
Dionne.  Selectman Rachel Hatch was not in attendance. 
 
Others present included Town Contract Accountant Jen Correia, School Superintendent 
John Fauci, School Board Chairman Michael Hatch, Renee Kordas, School Business 
Administrator Donna Clairmont, Ella Jo Regan, Carol Locke, Elena Ball, Emily Reese, 
Roger Ball, Phillip Eisenman and School Board Attorney Barbara Loughman. 
 
After attendance, everyone stood for the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 
Chairman Guarino explained that he had requested this meeting between the Selectmen 
and members of the school board to discuss openly things that hadn’t been discussed at 
the selectmen’s meeting.  He felt it was important that the school board, the 
superintendent, the business administrator, as well as the selectmen and the contract 
accountant be able to discuss the issue (payment schedule of town payments to the 
school). 
 
Contract Accountant Jen Correia read the note she had read at the last selectmen’s 
meeting expressing her concern with the way the town made its payments to the school.  
The Town’s two biggest payments were in July and August: we do not send out tax bills 
to cover the school payments for July thru December until November.  She explained that 
by making both big payments when we do, we are having to use anticipated tax dollars, 
so are therefore using Town money to make the payments, therefore, placing a burden on 
the Town’s cash flow. If the town has to take a tax anticipation loan to make the 
payments, it would cost the town about $3,000 a month in interest, and would be needed 
for three months for a total of $9,000.00.  The Town also loses about $550 a month in 
interest adhering to the school’s payment schedule. 
 
Jen had requested a copy of the school’s cash flow for the year to see if the payment 
schedule could be reconfigured so it would be fair to both the school and the town.  In a 
meeting with the school superintendent and business administrator, she was denied the 
information, told they were offended that she asked for it, and the superintendent 
suggested she come up with a schedule she felt would be fair to the Town. Jen did this  



 2

08-24-11 BOS  - School Board      APPROVED 

 

using information from the School Board’s Annual Report and financial documents filed 
with the Department of Revenue, and she then presented it to the Selectmen at their last 
meeting.  A copy of the proposed schedule was forwarded to the school along with a 
letter asking them to review it and let the Town know if it was something they could 
work with.  The Selectmen voted to defer the August payment until we heard back from 
the school board regarding the proposed payment schedule. 
 
Phil Eisenman asked when the Town last had to take a tax-anticipation note.  Jen replied 
that we hadn’t; we always had the money in our undesignated fund balance, but that was 
prior to the change in Budget Law RSA (chapter 32) made last year requiring the Town 
to designate a significant amount set aside for unpaid taxes, so we have about half the 
money we used to have. 
 
There was a difference of opinion between school board chair Michael Hatch and Jen as 
to whether the money that is paid between August and December is made with town 
money due to uncollected taxes or if the money had already been collected in the 
previous tax bill. 
 
School business administrator Donna Clairmont stated that the school and town are in 
similar situations, and it makes things difficult because we have different fiscal years. 
 
There was considerable discussion about why the town had made late payments to the 
school, but when the school business administrator had contacted Tim Warren twice 
about whether or not there was a problem with the payment schedule, he had told her 
there was no problem. 
 
Mr. Fauci asked the school’s attorney to speak on the RSA pertaining to town payments 
to schools.  Chairman Guarino said he didn’t want to discuss the law; he wanted to 
discuss the cash flow problem. 
 
Phil Eisenman was concerned because he said the school has no recourse if they are short 
of funds; they don’t have an undesignated fund balance they could use to meet their 
obligations.  He asked what they would do if they were short of funds.  Jen replied that 
they would ask the Town, and if we had the money, they would get a check. 
 
Renee Kordas felt there is baggage on both sides; we need to compromise and come to an 
agreement, but said they would need to know that payments would be made on time.  She 
said Donna (business administrator) had come up with a compromise schedule taking into 
consideration what Jen had put together.  Ms. Kordas stated that by not making the 
August payment, the Town is putting the school into the red.  She said she didn’t feel 
they had to open their books to prove they need the money when they need it.  Donna 
Clairmont presented the Town with a copy of their cash flow statement and a 
recommended revised payment schedule. 
 



 3

08-24-11 BOS  - School Board      APPROVED 

 
Superintendent Fauci stated that understanding the law is critical, and asked that the 
attorney be allowed to speak.  Attorney Loughman did address the RSA relating to 
payments, and said she has represented school districts for 30 years and this is the first 
time any school district has been asked to open their books.  Jen said she had never asked 
them to open the books to prove they need the money.   Attorney Loughman said school 
districts are not allowed to borrow money to cover their operating expenses, while the 
town has the authority to issue tax-anticipation notes, and if there is not enough money to 
“run the show”, the town would have to take out a tax-anticipation note.  Attorney 
Loughman addressed the difference the first three months of the year have on the town 
and school department budgets because of their fiscal years.  Jen stated that the 
recommendation she had received from the Department of Revenue Administration is 
that it is accepted accounting practices to ask for a cash flow statement from the school 
department.  Attorney Loughman replied that Jen had received the statement.  Jen agreed 
that she had received it tonight.  Attorney Loughman said Jen had wanted to see the 
books.  Jen had asked for a copy of the school’s cash flow statement. 
 
After further discussion, Selectman Lavin asked to stop pointing fingers and address the 
problem.  Donna Clairmont explained the schedule she had distributed, and the 
recommended payment schedule.  After review of the proposed payment schedule, Jen 
stated that she felt it was a good compromise for both the town and the school. 
 
Following a brief discussion, the proposed payment schedule was accepted, along with 
assurance that timely payments would be made. 
 
6:55 pm – Meeting with members of the school board ended. 
 
There was a brief discussion of why payments had been late. 
 
7:00 pm –MOTION – Selectman Lavin moved to adjourn the meeting.  Chairman 

Guarino seconded.  Motion passed 2-0. 

 

      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      Lois Dionne 
      Recording Clerk 
 

 
 
 


